
 
A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the CIVIC SUITE 0.1A, 
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN 
on THURSDAY, 22 SEPTEMBER 2011 at 7:00 PM and you are 
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:- 
 
 

APOLOGIES 
 
 � 

Contact 
(01480) 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of 
the Cabinet held on 21 July 2011. 
 

Mrs H J Taylor 
388008 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation 
to any Agenda item.  Please see notes 1 and 2 overleaf. 
 

 

3. COUNCILLOR T V ROGERS   
 

 

 To note the resignation of Councillor T V Rogers as a Cabinet 
member and the intention to appoint Councillor J A Gray as 
Executive Councillor for Resources and Councillor D Tysoe as 
Executive Councillor for Environment.  
 

 

4. FINANCIAL FORECAST  (Pages 7 - 32) 
 

 

 To receive a report by the Head of Financial Services. 
 

S Couper 
388103 

5. CAMBRIDGESHIRE TRAVEL PLAN GUIDANCE  (Pages 33 - 
42) 

 
 

 By way of a report by the Head of Planning Services to 
consider the draft Cambridgeshire Travel Plan Guidance. 
 
 

P Bland 
388340 

6. DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT BUDGET  (Pages 43 - 50) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Housing Services 
regarding the demand for disabled facilities grants and the 
implications for the 2011/12 budget. 
 

S Plant 
388240 

7. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 

 

 To resolve:- 
 
that the public be excluded from the meeting because the 
business to be transacted contains information which relates to 

 



individual/organisations and is likely to reveal the identity/terms 
of the contract. 
 

8. CALL CENTRE OPTIONS BEYOND 2012  (Pages 51 - 66) 
 

 

 To consider a report by the Head of Information Management 
regarding the options for the District Council’s Call Centre 
beyond 2012. 
 

C Hall 
388116 

M Hinton 
388196 

9. OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES   
 

 

 The Executive Leader to confirm that under the requirement of 
paragraph 4 (e) of the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, 
the Cabinet has no material or well founded objection to the 
proposals to establish a Corporate Support Office. 
 

 

 Dated this 14 day of September 2011  
  

  Head of Paid Service 
 
 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a 

greater extent than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the 
Councillor, their family or any person with whom they had a close 
association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a 

partner and any company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial 

interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of 
£25,000; or 

 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of 

the public (who has knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably 
regard the Member’s personal interest as being so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the public interest. 

 
 
Please contact Mrs H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 
01480 388008/e-mail Helen.Taylor@huntingdonshire.gov.uk /e-mail:   if 
you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your 
apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on 
any decision taken by the Cabinet. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed 



towards the Contact Officer.  
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers 
except during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 
 
 

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 

 
 

If you would like a translation of 
Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a  

large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager 

and we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 
 

Emergency Procedure 
In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the 
Meeting Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via 
the closest emergency exit. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the Civic Suite 0.1A 

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on 
Thursday, 21 July 2011. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor J D Ablewhite – Chairman. 
   
  Councillors N J Guyatt, T V Rogers and 

T D Sanderson. 
   
 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 

submitted on behalf of Councillors 
B S Chapman and J A Gray. 

   
   
 
 
27. MINUTES   
 
 The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 23 June 2011 were 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

28. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 
 No declarations were received. 

 
29. REVENUE MONITORING: 2010/11 OUTTURN AND 2011/12 

REVENUE BUDGET   
 
 A report by the Head of Financial Services was submitted (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) which contained details of the 
final outturn for revenue expenditure for 2010/11 and the variations 
between the original and the outturn budget for that year. 
 
Executive Councillors were pleased to note that as a result of under 
spending the Council had been successful in saving an additional £1 
million in revenue reserves.  Having expressed their thanks to staff for 
their efforts in achieving the budgetary outcomes, the Cabinet 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the spending variations for the revenue budget for 
2010/1011 be noted; 
 

(b) that the present position in terms of the revenue budget 
for 2011/12 outturn be noted, and  

 
(c) that the position on debts collected and written-off as set 

out in Annex C to the report now submitted be noted. 
 

30. CAPITAL MONITORING:2010/11 AND 2011/12 BUDGET   
 
 A report by the Head of Financial Services was submitted (a copy of 

Agenda Item 1

1



which is appended in the Minute Book) detailing the outturn for capital 
expenditure in 2010/11 and adjustments for 2011/12 budget. 
 
In noting variations in the programme, the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the report be received and the expenditure variations 
noted. 

 
31. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11   
 
 A report by the Head of Financial Services was submitted (a copy of 

which is appended in the Minute Book) which reviewed the respective 
levels of performance for the year ending 31st March 2011 by fund 
managers in the investment of the Council's Capital Receipts. 
 
In accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy's Treasury Management Code of Practice, Executive 
Councillors received the views of the Overview and Scrutiny 
(Economic Well-Being) Panel on the matter.   
 
Having acknowledged that the Council had performed well with 
regard to the returns it had achieved on its investment in the year, the 
Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 
 that the contents of the report be noted prior to its submission 

to the Council. 
 
 

32. CAMBRIDGESHIRE FUTURE TRANSPORT INITIATIVE   
 
 Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Planning Services 

(a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) on the 
Cambridgeshire Future Transport Initiative, being developed to 
provide alternative ways of meeting county-wide transport needs. The 
report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Environmental Well Being) whose comments were relayed to the 
Cabinet.  
 
Members were acquainted with the background to the initiative which 
had agreed by those partners involved in the delivery of passenger 
transport across Cambridgeshire in response to an announcement by 
the County Council that all public transport subsidies across the 
County would end by April 2015. The work was being overseen by a 
cross-authority member led Governance group comprising the County 
Council, NHS Cambridgeshire, Cambridgeshire Acre with 
representation from Huntingdonshire District Council and support 
from consultants and would result in the development of Transport for 
Cambridgeshire partnership .  
 
In considering the perceived implications for the Council, Executive 
Councillors were advised that the authority currently supported 
comprehensive and highly regarded community transport based 
services across the District within a budget of £83.5k per annum.  

2



Under the new arrangements this budget would be aligned with other 
partners to improve transport services throughout Cambridgeshire.  
The Cabinet recognised the importance of safeguarding current 
services delivered through Service Level Agreements and the need to 
ensure that the Initiative’s objectives reflects those within the new 
Council Plan. 
 
Having acknowledged the Overview and Scrutiny Panel’s input into 
the matter, the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that the on-going development of the Cambridgeshire 
Future Transport Initiative  and the work of the 
Governance and Solutions Group in association with the 
community objectives contained within the Council Plan 
for 2011 – 2015 be noted and supported; and 
 

(b) that the alignment of the current District Council Rural 
Transport Budget with the budgets of other 
Cambridgeshire partners within the future Transport 
Initiative, in order to deliver more effective transport 
services, be approved in principle subject to the 
protection of existing services or their replacement as 
part of the overall project. 

 
33. REPRESENTATION ON ORGANISATIONS   
 
 The Cabinet was invited to consider appointing representatives to 

serve on the Nene & Ouse Community Transport Board of Trustees 
and the One Leisure Huntingdon Sports Centre Joint Committee. 
 
Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that Councillor P L E Bucknell be appointed to serve on 
the Nene & Ouse Community Transport Board of 
Trustees; and 
 

(b) that Councillors S Cawley, J J Dutton and T D 
Sanderson be appointed to serve on the One Leisure 
Huntingdon Sports Centre Joint Committee. 

 
 
 

34. LEISURE CENTRE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENTS   
 
 (The Chairman announced that he proposed to admit the following 

urgent item in accordance with Section 100B (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 given the need to sign the agreement by the 
end of July 2011) 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the General Manager, One 
Leisure (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) seeking 
approval to negotiate new Management Agreements for the District’s 
five leisure centres. 

3



 
Members were advised that the five secondary schools linked to the 
leisure centres sites had committed themselves to achieving 
Academy status and as a result of this, ownership of the school sites 
would transfer from the County to the appropriate schools/colleges  
As a consequence, management agreements would now need to be 
entered into directly with the schools/colleges themselves. Having 
been advised that materially the agreements would be the same as 
that with the County Council and that Ernulf School and Longsands 
School in St Neots have already combined to create a unified body, 
the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, after 
consultation with the Executive Councillor for Health and 
Active Communities, be authorised to negotiate and finalise 
the draft heads of terms for the districts leisure centres and 
enter into a lease and a new management agreement, initially 
with Longsands Learning Partnership and in due course with 
each of the other schools and colleges aspiring to academy 
status as necessary. 

 
 

35. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 RESOLVED 

 
that the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
because the business to be transacted contains exempt 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of the 
authority. 

 
36. DEVELOPMENT OF ONE LEISURE, ST IVES   
 
 Consideration was given to a report by the General Manager, One 

Leisure ( a copy of which is appended in the Annex to the Minute 
Book) outlining proposals to re-model the St Ives Leisure Centre. 
Executive Councillors were advised that the proposals were intended 
to reduce the Centre’s net operating costs and to increase admissions 
and participation levels to meet both Government and Council health 
agenda targets. 
 
The Cabinet were acquainted with details of the four options for the 
future of the Centre and the rationale, financial implications and 
potential income level of each. 
 
Particular reference was drawn to the proposed closure of the rifle 
range which had not been incorporated into the remodelling 
proposals. Members were advised that the area produced a minimal 
amount of income and that the Rifle and Pistol Club were not in a 
position to make a significant contribution to the cost of providing a 
smaller facility within the development.  Furthermore, Executive 
Councillors were advised that alternative target shooting sports clubs 
were being run in Yaxley and Cambridge.  
 
 

4



Having received the deliberations of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels (Economic Well Being and Social Well Being) and in thanking 
them for their input, the Cabinet 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) that option B for the redevelopment of One Leisure St Ives 
be supported and the Leisure Centres General Manager 
requested to issue tenders in respect of this; and 
 

(b) that following the final tender evaluation a further report 
be submitted to the Cabinet including an assessment of 
the business case and the social impact of the proposal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (Economic Wellbeing) 
CABINET 

8 SEPTEMBER 2011
22 SEPTEMBER 2011

FINANCIAL FORECAST 
(Report by the Head of Financial Services) 

1 PURPOSE 

1.1 This report is the start of the process leading to the formal 
approval of the 2012/13 budget and Medium Term Plan (MTP) 
next February.  It provides Members with an update on : 

! the financial plans approved in February, 
! progress on identifying and delivering savings 
! areas where there are new or continuing uncertainties.  

This provides the starting point for the draft budget in December 
which will consider changes to service delivery and Council Tax 
levels. 

1.2 It also seeks approval for the basis on which the Minimum 
Revenue will be calculated (see Annex E). 

2 BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Council’s financial plan (approved by Council in February) is 
based on funding a deficit budget from reserves to provide time to 
implement a phased savings plan. The highlighted lines in the 
table below show the savings required and the reliance on 
reserves to enable that phasing.

2.2 The key issues considered in this report are: 
! The impact of the 2010/11 outturn. 
! Progress in delivering the identified savings 

Overall Summary 
Forecast Budget MTP 

10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16
£M £M £M £M £M £M

Net Spending before savings 23.5 25.6 26.4 27.4 28.7 29.5 
Proposed Savings  -0.4 -3.0 -4.3 -5.5 -5.7 -6.6
Savings still required 0.0 -0.8 -1.0 -1.5 -2.0
Net Spending after Savings 23.1 22.6 21.3 21.0 21.5 20.9 
Funded by:       
   New Homes Grant  -0.8 -1.5 -2.1 -2.7 -3.4 
   Formula Grant (RSG) -12.9 -10.5 -9.3 -9.2 -8.7 -8.9 
   Special Council Tax Grant  -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 0.0 
   Council Tax -7.2 -7.5 -7.6 -7.9 -8.1 -8.4 
SHORTFALL Met from Reserves 3.0 3.6 2.7 1.6 1.7 0.3
Council Tax £124.17 £124.17 £127.27 £130.46 £133.72 £137.06 

       Increase  £0.00 £3.10 £3.18 £3.26 £3.34 
Remaining Reserves EOY 13.0 9.4 6.6 5.0 3.3 3.0 

Agenda Item 4

7



! Updating and where possible assessing the risks identified 
in the report and the new ones that have subsequently 
emerged.

! Identifying the savings still required 
! Considering future levels of Council Tax increase 

3 SUMMARY 

The financial result for 2010/11 was beneficial allowing a 
reduction in the deficit that had to be funded from reserves. 

Savings: 
o Good progress has been achieved on many of the 

items with the potential for some to over achieve. 
o Some will not be achieved. 
o Some are still dependent on Member debate and 

confirmation.

The plans that this Council has made and is continuing to 
make for house building are likely to give a major increase in 
New Homes Bonus. 

There are many significant uncertainties in Government 
Funding including: 

o Grant levels for 2013/14 
o Localisation of Business Rates 
o Reductions in General Grant to fund New Homes 

Bonus
o Localisation of Council Tax benefits 
o Changes to the responsibilities for Housing Benefit 

There are many other uncertainties including the future 
economic situation and the achievement of some of the 
existing savings proposals. 

It therefore appears, at least at this stage of the financial 
cycle, that the Council should target savings within the 
following range: 

UNIDENTIFIED 
SAVINGS

Budget MTP

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17
£M £M £M £M £M

Current  plan 0.8 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.0

Proposed Range 

Lower End 0.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1

Higher End 1.3 3.6 4.1 5.5 6.0

8



4 2010/11 OUTTURN 

4.1 Last year (2010/11) the Council managed to keep its spending £1M 
below forecast due to holding posts vacant wherever possible in 
order to be ready to deliver targeted savings for the current year, 
successful revaluation appeals and other, mainly one–off, savings 
partially offset by lower planning fees. £1.6M was used from the 
Special Reserve to fund redundancies leaving a balance of £0.3M. 
£1.9M was taken from general reserves to fund the spending 
deficit leaving Revenue Reserves (including the £0.6M delayed 
spending reserve) of £14.2M at 1st April 2011.

4.2 Capital expenditure of £7.1M was £0.4M higher than forecast due 
mainly to lower slippage than expected. Due to the mix of assets 
finally funded the Minimum Revenue Provision (statutory 
requirement to provide for repaying debt) will be £64k lower than 
forecast but this may turn out to be off-set by higher figures for 
future years when the detailed review of the capital programme is 
carried out in the autumn.

5. SAVINGS 

5.1 Annex A shows the list of savings identified last year and the latest 
view on their certainty. 

5.2 For the purpose of the initial forecast it is assumed that these 
items will all be achieved, including the “mothballing” of 
CCTV, the increase in car park fees and the reduction in 
grants to the voluntary sector. However two scenarios for 
partial non-achievement are included in Section 10 “risks and 
unknowns” and Annex D. 

5.3 It is obviously very important that, where items are not yet definite, 
the necessary decisions are made as soon as possible so that the 
amount that needs to be added to the target for “savings not yet 
identified” can be determined so work can commence to identify 
alternative proposals. 

5.4 Annex D considers the impact of some of the savings not being 
achieved and the potential for the target for some items (e.g. pay 
and allowances) being exceeded.

6. GOVERNMENT FUNDING 

6.1 There are a range of Government Grants that fund part of the 
Council’s expenditure and they include:

! Council Tax and Housing Benefits Grant (£40.6M) – a 
generally full reimbursement of the sums paid out to 
applicants but with a number of technical complexities.

9



The government has announced its intention to transfer the 
processing of Housing Benefits from Local Authorities to the 
DWP.  This will be a phased transfer of existing cases 
between 2013 and 2017.  No new claims will be taken by 
Authorities from October 2013. 
The fraud function will cease from April 2013 but though the 
Council would need to retain an element of this work it is 
possible that the reduction in the Government admin 
subsidy will not recognise this. The worst case scenario is 
that the funding of the residual team would fall on the 
Council at a cost in the region of £75k per year. 

Other potential financial impacts include further 
disproportionate losses in administration subsidy, 
redundancy costs, increased costs of collecting 
overpayment debts and increased fraud between 2013 and 
2017 on existing case load. 

The Government have also issued a consultation on the 
Localisation of Council Tax Benefits from April 2012 which 
is designed to “help more people back into work, maintain 
protections for pensioners and save the taxpayer up to 
£480 million a year”. Effectively the Council’s Government 
funding would reduce by £900k per year, from £9M to 
£8.1M, on the basis that the Council would set up its own 
scheme which preserved the benefits levels for certain 
government defined vulnerable groups but significantly 
reduced payments to other applicants as part of the 
Government’s philosophy of encouraging them to return to 
work or better paid work. 

If these changes do not succeed, the likelihood is that the 
Council would be unable to collect the £900k of council tax 
previously met from benefits. This would reduce the tax 
base thus sharing the loss over all bodies that levy a 
Council Tax in Huntingdonshire. This Council’s share would 
be 8.4% or £76k. 

! Council Tax Reward Grant – a fixed grant of £184k per 
year for 4 years from 2011/12. This is equivalent to 2.5% of 
Council Tax income, to reward any Council, like 
Huntingdonshire, that did not raise their Council Tax this 
year.

! New Homes Reward Grant (£0.8M rising to £5.9M by 
2016/17) – Introduced from this year to reward those 
Councils that achieve Housing Growth by giving a payment 
equivalent to the growth in the taxbase at the national 
average Council Tax for 6 years. The scheme is intended to 
be permanent so the sum will rise as each new year of 
growth is added until year 7 when the first year will drop out 
to be replaced by the figure for year 7. There will be an 

10



added sum of £350 for each of the homes that will be social 
rented. 20% of the sum earned is deducted by the 
Government and paid direct to the County Council. 

The New Homes Reward Grant is a very significant grant 
for this Council. The approved plan includes a forecast of 
£4M per year by 2016/17. The Council’s latest planning 
projections for the phasing and scale of housing growth 
suggest this sum could be even higher at £5.9M. Whilst 
approval of the Enterprise Zone will potentially result in 
additional extra housing in the medium term the whole 
profile is dependent upon public demand for the houses. As 
such, this will be an area for critical review at every stage of 
our future financial planning. 

Whilst no allowance is made here for the off-setting 
reductions in national Formula Grant totals that the 
Government has recognised will be required, allowance 
has been made in Section 10 “risks and unknowns” 
and Annex D. 

NEW HOMES GRANT 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17
£M £M £M £M £M £M

Current Approved MTP       
Grant Receivable 0.8 1.5 2.1 2.7 3.4 4.0 
       
This Forecast       
Grant Receivable  0.8 1.7 2.7 3.5 4.7 5.9 
VARIATION ( - = LOSS) 0.2 0.6 0.8 1.3 1.9

! Formula Grant (£10.5M falling to £8.6M by 2016/17) – This 
is intended to equalise needs and resources and also fund 
any additional tasks that have been transferred to local 
authorities over time. It uses a very complex formula based 
on regression analysis and can be extremely volatile when 
the formulae are changed. As a result it incorporates a 
damping factor that ensures that any authority that has a 
loss of grant greater than a Government determined 
percentage will have that extra loss protected at the cost of 
those authorities that should have gained. The resulting 
amount is artificially split between “Revenue Support Grant” 
and the redistribution of nationally pooled business rates. 

The final Formula Grant figure for 2011/12 and the 
indicative figure for 2012/13 includes protection of £1.176M 
and £1.054M respectively due to the true grant figure 
requiring a reduction in excess of the Government limit. All 
things being equal, the protection will be phased out over 
time worsening the position compared to the current plan. 

11



FORMULA GRANT 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17
£M £M £M £M £M £M

Current Approved MTP       
Grant Receivable 10.5 9.3 9.2 8.7 8.9 9.1 
       
This Forecast       
2010/11 True Grant 9.3      
Forecast reduction CSR 2010 %  -12.0% -1.0% -6.0%   
Forecast increase thereafter     +2.5% +2.5% 
Forecast True Grant  8.2 8.2 7.7 7.9 8.1 
Protection 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 
Grant Receivable  10.5 9.3 9.1 8.5 8.5 8.6 

-0.1 -0.2 -0.3 -0.5
Notes:
! Formula Grant includes Revenue Support Grant and NNDR which are in 

aggregate distributed in line with the grant formula. 
! % reductions are from the Comprehensive Spending Review 2010. 
! It is assumed that the protection will reduce annually. 
! Excludes any assessment of the reduction in Formula Grant that the 

Government will need to make to fund the shortfall in funding for the 
New Homes Bonus. 

6.2 The Government has now commenced consultation on a scheme 
to replace Formula Grant from April 2013 with each authority being 
able to keep a proportion of the Business Rates they collect with 
the starting point linked to the figures used in the 2012/13 Formula 
Grant. Their concept is that this would encourage authorities to 
prioritise economic development because they would be allowed 
to keep a proportion of the growth in Business Rates in their area. 
There are currently a significant number of unknowns including: 

! How the 2012/13 Formula Grant will be adjusted for 
inflation, demographic change, new responsibilities, 
planned reduction in local government funding, shortfall on 
New Homes Bonus etc. etc. 

! The proportion of any growth the Council would be allowed 
to keep. 

! Whether it would rise by RPI in line with the increase in 
Business Rates each year. In any year RPI may be above 
or below the actual inflation impacting on local authorities. 

! How any new responsibilities would be funded. 
! How often the system would need to be “re-set” because of 

demographic change and significantly varying levels of 
growth or decline and what the new figures would be based 
on (surely not the existing grant formula). 

! How any growth in enterprise zones would be allocated to 
individual authorities by the LEP. 

6.3 A number of papers are expected to be issued during August and 
these may begin to provide some of the answers but in the 
meantime there is clearly a trade off to be considered between 
potential growth in business rates and reductions in the total sums 

12



that the Government intends to allocate to Local Authorities and 
the added diversion of sums to the New Homes Bonus.

7.  CAPITAL 

7.1 In recent years the Council has maintained a significant capital 
programme. However as a result of the emerging financial 
pressures and the conclusion of the Pathfinder House and Depot 
projects the capital programme is now much diminished.

7.2 In the light of the reduced programme it is proposed to reduce the 
contingency for future years as shown below. The 2016/17 
contingency will be replaced by individual bids when the draft MTP 
is produced in the autumn but for the purpose of the forecast it is 
assumed that it also will be reduced by £1M. 

Estimated outturn prices 

8. ASSUMPTIONS

8.1 At this initial stage of the MTP process further changes to net 
spending are limited in number. They include: 

! revisions to interest rates and the amounts that interest is 
earned on due to last year’s outturn and any changes included 
in this report.

! inflation and interest rate adjustments.
! latest forecast of the current years outturn 
! a few items significant items that warrant changes at this stage. 

8.2 Elsewhere on your agenda is a report relating to likely extra costs 
on Disabled Facilities Grants. This was too late to include in the 
forecast model and so an assumption has been included in the 
“Risks and Unknowns” section. 

8.3 Annex B provides further information. 

Net Capital Programme 11/12
£000

12/13
£000

13/14
£000

14/15
£000

15/16
£000

16/17
£000

17/18
£000

18/19
£000

19/20
£000

Current Approved MTP    
Based on bids 11.9 3.3 3.0 2.4 2.8   
Contingency for future years      4.1 4.1 4.3 4.4
Proposed Contingency 3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4

13



9. INITIAL SAVINGS REQUIREMENT

9.1 The table below is based on: 

! the changes already explained (i.e. those where it is deemed 
possible to make a reasonable assessment of the financial 
impact),

!  a 2.5% annual increase in Council Tax from 2012/13 onwards, 
! the full achievement of the identified savings in Annex A

SHORTFALL 
Budget MTP
12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Net Spending before 
unidentified savings -22.2 -21.7 -22.6 -22.6 -23.2 
Funded by:      

Government  Grants -11.2 -11.9 -12.2 -13.2 -14.5 
Council Tax -7.6 -7.9 -8.1 -8.4 -8.7 

Reserves -3.4 -1.8 -2.2 0.8 0.0 
Unidentified Savings -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 0.0 

 Further detail and additional years in Annex C 

10. RISKS AND UNKNOWNS 

10.1 However this level does not take account of a significant 
number of items where the impact cannot be reasonably 
forecast and which will have a direct impact on net spending 
or funding and hence the unidentified savings target.  

10.2 The most fundamental issue continues to be assessing the 
economic impact of the various international financial issues. 
There are many number conflicting views on whether there are 
major problems ahead for the UK, “euroland” or the USA. Some 
commentators believe that there will be further financial impacts 
on the UK and, if so, there would be impacts on the Council due 
to:

! Lower income from planning fees, building control fees 
and leisure charges. 

! Lower New Homes Bonus 
! More applicants for housing and council tax benefit 
! Higher homelessness. 
! Reductions in Government Grant. 

10.3 The final detail of the Government’s proposals resulting from the 
Hutton review of public sector pensions is still awaited. There are 
clear indications that changes will emerge that will reduce the cost 

14



from options such as introducing increases to employee 
contribution rates, basing pensions on career averages and 
altering the age at which pensions become payable. Some benefit 
has implicitly already been taken in the Actuary’s approach last 
year but it is not yet possible to gauge how much further benefit 
there might be and in what time-scale. 

10.4 Other issues include: 

! Council confirmation and decisions on the items contained in 
the savings list (Annex A) 

! Levels of pay awards, inflation and interest rates 
! Ability to maintain income levels 
! Grant changes for 2013/14 
! Impact of growth in Business Rates 
! Certainty of assumptions on New Homes Bonus and loss of 

Formula Grant (or its replacement) to fund it. 
! Costs of demographic growth 
! Extra cost of Disabled Facilities Grants 
! Change in Pension Fund contributions 
! Ability to achieve the turnover allowance 
! Impact of changes to the benefits systems.
! Future capital programmes have items with shorter asset 

lives resulting in higher revenue cost for repaying borrowing. 
! The potential for costs relating to “orphan” contaminated land 

sites.
! High priority service developments not already in the MTP 

and any unavoidable spending requirements not referred to 
in this report emerging. 

! Repayment of past land charge fees. 

10.5 Annex D attempts to quantify a lower and higher end assumption 
of the costs of these items in order to give a range for the level of 
savings that still need to be identified. 

11. REVISED SAVINGS RANGE 

11.1 Based on the details in Annex D the revised range of savings still 
to be identified is shown below: 

UNIDENTIFIED SAVINGS 
Budget MTP

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17
£M £M £M £M £M

Proposed Range 

! Lower End 0.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1

! Higher End 1.3 3.6 4.1 5.5 6.0

15



12. COUNCIL TAX OPTIONS 

12.1 The Council currently raises £7.4m through Council Tax by 
charging the average band D tax payer £124.17. It is the 20th

lowest of the 201 District Councils which have an average of £168 
and a maximum of £310.

12.2 The current financial plan is based on keeping the annual Council 
Tax increase down to 2.5% per year. The Government intend to 
replace the previous capping regime with a system whereby the 
Council can increase the Council Tax by any sum but this would 
then be limited to a pre-announced Government limit if they were 
subsequently unable to achieve a majority in a local referendum. 

12.3 Obviously the most critical element is the timing of the 
announcement and the size of the Government Limit. Clearly, if it 
were in excess of 2.5%, the Council could consider a higher 
increase. Alternatively it may be considered at some stage that 
Taxpayers would rather pay a higher increase to preserve services 
they would otherwise lose. To attempt this there would need to be 
very strong indications of general public support before the costs 
and administrative effort of undertaking a referendum were 
considered to be worthwhile.

12.4 Some examples of the reductions in savings resulting from further 
increases in the Council Tax level are shown below: 

5% tax increase in 2012/13, an extra 2.5% (£3.10 per year on a band D 
property), would avoid £0.2M of savings. 

5% tax increase for the next 5 years (Band D Council Tax at the end of 
£158.48) would avoid £1.1M of savings. 

An increase next year to £168, the current District Council average, 
followed by 2.5% per year, would avoid £2.8M of savings. 

16



13. TIMETABLE FOR BUDGET APPROVAL 

13.1 The key dates in the process are shown below: 

September Forecast 
8 Overview & Scrutiny 
22 Cabinet 
28 Council 

December Draft Budget and MTP 
1 Overview & Scrutiny 
8 Cabinet 
14 Council 

February Final Budget, MTP and Council Tax Level for 2012/13 
2 Overview & Scrutiny 
16 Cabinet 
22 Council 

14. CONCLUSIONS 

14.1 The significant levels of uncertainty about various issues means 
that, at least for this stage of the budget process, it is necessary to 
consider a range for the level of extra savings that will be required. 

14.2 If higher levels of Council Tax increase were considered to be 
appropriate then the level of savings would reduce as illustrated in 
para. 12.4 above. 

14.3 It is important that the Council focuses on the items that it can 
influence and the most significant aspects are: 

! Confirmation and clarification of those items in Annex A 
which are still uncertain. 

! Consideration of the planning assumption for future Council 
Tax increases

! Identification of a list of further acceptable savings that can 
be ready to introduce at short notice depending on the 
resolution of some of the unknown items.

14.4 Cabinet are required to approve the basis for calculating the 
Minimum Revenue Provision each year. The recommended basis 
is shown at Annex E. 

17



13. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Cabinet is requested to: 

Approve the annuity basis for the calculation of Minimum 
Revenue Provision as outlined in Annex E. 

Note the contents of this report

Make appropriate comments and recommendations to
Council on this year’s budget process  

ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
Source Documents: 
1. Working papers in Financial Services 
2. Financial Forecast (September 2010), 2010/11 Outturn, 2011/12 

Revenue Budget and the 2012/16 MTP 

Contact Officer: Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services ! 01480 388103

ANNEXS 

A Identified Savings List 
B Assumptions 
C Summary Forecast 
D Unidentified Savings Range 
E Basis for calculating MRP 

18



A
N

N
E

X
 A

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 S
A

V
IN

G
S

 

S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
RE

VE
NU

E
NE

T C
AP

ITA
L

NO
TES

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

201
0 

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

Sch
em

e
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
201

1 
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
Re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

- S
en

io
r m

an
ag

er
s 

-2
60

 
-4

00
-7

30
-7

30
-7

30
Th

is 
ye

ar
 w

ill 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
an

d 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

£3
00

k 
in

 a
 fu

ll y
ea

r 
ba

se
d 

on
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 c
ha

ng
es

. C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

is 
un

de
rw

ay
 o

n 
th

e 
fir

st
 s

ta
ge

 o
f a

 p
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

PP
P 

wh
ich

 if
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

wo
ul

d 
m

or
e 

th
an

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

20
12

/1
3 

ta
rg

et
 b

ut
 le

av
e 

fu
rth

er
 

sa
vin

gs
 re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r 2
01

3/
14

. T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

ph
as

e 
of

 P
PP

 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

wo
ul

d 
fu

rth
er

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
fu

rth
er

 s
av

in
gs

 re
qu

ire
d.

 
Pa

y 
& 

al
lo

wa
nc

es
 R

ev
ie

w 
-3

75
 

-3
75

-3
00

-3
50

-3
50

Co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ha
s 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

on
 s

ta
ff 

al
lo

wa
nc

es
, t

he
 2

01
1/

12
 

pa
y 

aw
ar

d 
an

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 th
e 

gr
ad

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

. T
he

 2
01

1/
12

 
ta

rg
et

 w
ill 

no
t b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
ab

ou
t £

11
0k

 b
ut

 if
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 th

en
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r s

ub
se

qu
en

t y
ea

rs
 w

ill 
be

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 e
xc

ee
de

d.
 

Re
du

ce
d 

pa
y 

aw
ar

d 
20

10
 

-1
56

 
-1

56
-1

56
-1

56
-1

56
Ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Tu
rn

ov
er

 s
av

in
gs

 
-1

14
 

-1
14

-1
14

-1
14

-1
14

De
pe

nd
en

t u
po

n 
tu

rn
ov

er
. 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ch

ar
ge

s 
fo

r b
ul

ky
 w

as
te

 
-2

0 
-2

0
-2

0
-2

0
-2

0
No

t e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
s 

ta
ke

 u
p 

of
 s

er
vic

e 
is 

re
du

cin
g.

 
Re

du
ce

 re
fu

se
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
by

 o
ne

 
ro

un
d

0 
-1

00
-1

00
-1

00
-1

00
Ro

un
d 

op
tim

isa
tio

n 
wo

rk
 b

ei
ng

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 b
ut

 it
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

pr
ac

tic
al

 to
 d

ef
er

 in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

un
til 

Ju
ne

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 re
du

ce
 

ne
xt

 y
ea

r’s
 s

av
in

g.
 

Re
cy

cli
ng

 G
at

e 
Fe

es
 

-1
8

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

(m
ar

ke
ts

) 
-5

 
-5

-5
-5

-5
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
CC

TV
 V

an
 - 

re
m

ov
e 

sa
te

llit
e 

sy
st

em
 

-8
 

-8
-8

-8
-8

Va
n 

so
ld

 a
nd

 s
er

vic
e 

ce
as

ed
 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 C
CT

V 
Ca

m
er

as
 

-1
5 

-1
5

-1
5

-1
5

-1
5

No
 o

f c
am

er
as

 re
du

ce
d 

an
d 

sa
vin

g 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. 

Re
du

ce
 C

CT
V 

to
 a

 b
as

ic 
se

rv
ice

 
-1

29
 

-1
72

-1
72

-1
72

-1
72

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

M
ot

hb
al

l C
CT

V 
0 

-3
00

-3
00

-3
00

-3
00

Se
rv

ice
 u

nd
er

 re
vie

w 
- r

an
ge

 o
f o

pt
io

ns
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 la

te
r i

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

Co
un

try
sid

e 
- r

ed
uc

e 
st

af
f a

nd
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
co

m
e 

-1
01

 
-1

49
-1

99
-1

99
-1

99
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 

Tr
an

sf
er

 C
ou

nt
ry

sid
e 

to
 a

 tr
us

t 
0 

0
0

-1
00

-1
00

No
 w

or
k 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
as

 n
ot

 d
ue

 u
nt

il 2
01

4/
15

 
Re

du
ce

d 
gr

ou
nd

s 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

st
an

da
rd

s
0 

-1
50

-1
50

-1
50

-1
50

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 D

ivi
sio

n 
Re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n

-1
96

 
-2

50
-2

50
-2

50
-2

50
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 

19



S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
RE

VE
NU

E
NE

T C
AP

ITA
L

NO
TES

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

201
0 

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

Sch
em

e
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
201

1 
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
En

vir
on

m
en

t S
tra

te
gy

 F
un

di
ng

 
-2

0 
-2

0
-2

0
-2

0
35

Al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
Sm

al
l s

ca
le

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l  
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 s

ta
ff 

sa
vin

g 
0 

-2
5

-5
0

-5
0

-5
0

In
clu

de
d 

in
 e

rro
r -

 w
ill 

no
t b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Re
nt

al
 o

f s
pa

ce
 in

 P
FH

 
0 

-7
5

-1
50

-1
50

-1
50

Pr
ob

le
m

at
ic 

- n
o 

cu
rre

nt
 in

te
re

st
 

A1
4 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
as

su
m

ed
 

ca
nc

el
la

tio
n 

 
-1

00
 

0
0

0
0

Al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 - 
bu

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 w

ill 
re

-e
m

er
ge

 w
he

n 
a 

ne
w 

A1
4 

sc
he

m
e 

do
es

 c
om

e 
fo

rw
ar

d.
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t -
 s

ta
ff 

sa
vin

gs
 

-7
7 

-7
7

-7
7

-7
7

-7
7

Al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 e

ffi
cie

nc
ie

s 
-4

8 
-4

8
-4

8
-4

8
-4

8
Al

re
ad

y 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

ch
ar

ge
s 

0 
-1

50
-3

00
-3

00
-5

00
Th

is 
is 

in
 a

dd
itio

n 
to

 th
e 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
ly 

in
fla

tio
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 1
0%

 
th

is 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 in

 2
01

4/
15

. T
hi

s 
ye

ar
's 

in
cr

ea
se

 w
ill 

no
tb

e 
fu

lly
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f d

el
ay

s 
in

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

up
da

te
d 

or
de

rs
. 

Fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 s

av
in

gs
 w

ill 
be

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 u

po
n 

fo
rm

al
 

ag
re

em
en

t o
f, 

an
d 

th
en

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l d

el
ive

ry
 o

f, 
an

 u
pd

at
ed

 c
ar

 
pa

rk
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

n.
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t e
ffi

cie
nc

ie
s 

0 
-9

5
-9

5
-9

5
-9

5
Al

re
ad

y 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 - 

bu
t n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
re

tit
le

d 
as

 P
la

nn
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s.
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 G

ra
nt

s 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 
 

-5
1

-2
94

-2
94

-2
94

£5
1k

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 1
2/

13
; 2

01
3 

on
wa

rd
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
M

em
be

r d
ec

isi
on

 F
eb

 2
01

2 
(S

tu
dy

 in
 h

an
d)

 
En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 s
ta

ff 
sa

vin
gs

 
-2

01
 

-2
01

-2
01

-2
01

-2
01

Al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l &

 C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ea
lth

 
sa

vin
gs

 
  

 
-7

5
-7

5
-7

5
So

m
e 

al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

, t
ar

ge
t a

m
ou

nt
 lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
20

13
/1

4
Ho

us
in

g 
st

af
f e

ffi
cie

nc
y 

sa
vin

gs
 

-4
5 

-1
00

-1
00

-1
00

-1
00

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 (p

ar
t i

s 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

st
af

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n)

  
Ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

G
ra

nt
 

-8
5 

-8
5

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f s

om
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ca
lls

 to
 c

al
l 

ce
nt

re
-1

1 
-1

1
-1

1
-1

1
-1

1
Bu

dg
et

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t m

ad
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
sa

vin
g 

-2
4 

-2
4

-2
4

-2
4

-2
4

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

sa
vin

g 
-2

3 
-2

3
-2

3
-2

3
-2

3
Ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t S

up
po

rt 
to

 E
CD

C 
-7

 
-5

-5
-5

-5
Li

ke
ly

E-
M

ar
ke

tp
la

ce
-2

0 
-2

0
-2

0
-2

0
-2

0
5

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

. 
Fu

rth
er

 F
in

an
cia

l S
er

vic
es

 s
av

in
gs

 
-2

4 
-4

8
-4

8
-4

8
-4

8
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 re
du

nd
an

cy
 

20



S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
RE

VE
NU

E
NE

T C
AP

ITA
L

NO
TES

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

201
0 

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

Sch
em

e
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
201

1 
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
Lo

we
r r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 B

en
ef

its
 A

dm
in

 
G

ra
nt

 
-6

7 
-5

6
-5

6
-5

6
-5

6
Su

bj
ec

t t
o 

DW
P 

de
cis

io
ns

.  
Be

st
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vic
es

 - 
St

af
f s

av
in

gs
 

-8
0 

-9
0

-1
15

-1
15

-1
15

W
ill 

on
ly 

ac
hi

ev
e 

ab
ou

t £
40

k 
in

 2
01

1/
12

 
Re

du
ce

 c
al

l c
en

tre
 h

ou
rs

 
 

-2
0

-2
0

-2
0

-2
0

W
ill 

be
 re

vie
we

d 
at

 J
un

e 
20

12
 O

&S
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 
Re

du
ce

 c
al

l c
en

tre
 s

ys
te

m
 c

os
ts

 
0 

-1
0

-3
0

-3
0

-3
0

O
n 

ta
rg

et
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 £
60

k 
sa

vin
gs

 fr
om

 2
01

3/
14

 
Re

du
ce

 Y
ax

le
y 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vic
e 

Ce
nt

re
 c

os
ts

 
-3

5 
-3

5
-5

5
-5

5
-5

5
Ho

ur
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
at

 R
am

se
y 

an
d 

Ya
xle

y 
bu

t n
ot

 to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
rig

in
al

ly 
en

vis
ag

ed
. O

th
er

 s
av

in
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
e 

an
d 

wi
ll b

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

dr
af

t b
ud

ge
t i

n 
th

e 
au

tu
m

n.
Re

du
ce

 R
am

se
y 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vic
e 

Ce
nt

re
 c

os
ts

 
-3

0 
-4

2
-4

2
-3

7
-3

7

Re
du

ce
 S

t I
ve

s 
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vic

e 
Ce

nt
re

 c
os

ts
 

-2
8 

-2
8

-4
3

-4
3

-4
3

St
 Iv

es
 C

SC
 c

lo
se

d 
at

 e
nd

 o
f M

ay
. S

av
in

g 
ex

pe
ct

ed
. 

Re
du

ce
 h

ou
rs

 a
t H

un
tin

gd
on

 
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vic

e 
Ce

nt
re

 
0 

0
-7

-1
4

-1
4

To
o 

ea
rly

 to
 a

ss
es

s.
 

Le
isu

re
 R

ec
ep

tio
n 

Au
to

m
at

io
n 

-1
5 

-1
5

-1
5

-1
5

-1
5

60
Ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Le
isu

re
 S

av
in

gs
 

-9
0

-2
80

-3
90

-4
90

Ne
t 

sa
vin

g 
in

 c
ur

re
nt

 y
ea

r 
is 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

be
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 F
ut

ur
e 

ye
ar

s 
ar

e 
de

pe
nd

en
t u

po
n 

th
e 

St
 Iv

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ed

in
g 

as
 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

. C
ab

in
et

 h
av

e 
ag

re
ed

 it
 c

an
 p

ro
ce

ed
 to

 te
nd

er
 

st
ag

e 
be

fo
re

 m
ak

in
g 

a 
fin

al
 d

ec
isi

on
.  

Tr
an

sf
er

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tre
s 

to
 a

 T
ru

st
 

0 
0

0
0

-4
00

Re
qu

ire
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 p

ol
itic

al
 c

on
fir

m
at

io
n.

 
Ne

tw
or

k 
Sa

vin
g 

-3
2 

-5
3

-5
3

-5
3

-5
3

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

He
lp

 D
es

k 
Sa

vin
g 

-7
5 

-7
5

 A
ch

ie
ve

d 
fo

r 1
1/

12
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
in

 1
2/

13
, h

ow
ev

er
, 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
of

tw
ar

e 
Li

ce
nc

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r h
om

e 
wo

rk
er

s 
c2

0k
. 

IM
D 

St
af

f s
av

in
gs

 
-1

7 
-2

3
-3

6
-3

6
-1

01
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
IM

D 
Co

nt
ra

ct
 S

av
in

gs
 

-3
5 

-3
5

-1
10

-3
5

-7
5

Th
es

e 
 s

av
in

gs
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

IM
D 

Sh
ar

ed
 S

er
vic

e 
In

co
m

e 
-1

0 
-1

5
-2

0
-3

0
-3

0
In

co
m

e 
in

 2
01

1/
12

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

fo
re

ca
st

 (e
xp

ec
t c

 3
0k

), 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 
ye

ar
s 

on
 ta

rg
et

.
IM

D 
In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Sa
vin

gs
 

  
-1

5
-1

5
-1

5
-1

5
St

ill 
to

 b
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 b
ut

 e
xp

ec
t e

xt
ra

 £
16

k 
pe

r y
ea

r s
av

in
g 

bu
t 

re
qu

ire
s 

a 
on

e-
of

f p
ay

m
en

t o
f £

72
k 

(c
ap

ita
l).

 

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

- r
ed

uc
ed

 
fu

nd
in

g
-4

0 
-8

0
-1

00
-1

00
-1

00
O

n 
ta

rg
et

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Di
st

ric
t w

id
e 

- E
 v

er
sio

n 
on

ly 
-5

0 
-5

0
-5

0
-5

0
-5

0
O

n 
ta

rg
et

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

Hu
nt

s.
 M

at
te

rs
 - 

ce
as

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

-1
0 

-1
0

-1
0

-1
0

-1
0

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 

21



S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
RE

VE
NU

E
NE

T C
AP

ITA
L

NO
TES

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

201
0 

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

Sch
em

e
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
201

1 
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

lic
en

sin
g 

in
co

m
e 

-3
5 

-3
5

-3
5

-3
5

-3
5

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

- e
ffi

cie
nc

y 
an

d 
hi

gh
er

 
ch

ar
ge

s
-7

 
-1

4
-2

1
-2

8
-3

5
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 v

ol
um

es
 h

ol
di

ng
 u

p 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 la
te

r y
ea

rs
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 u
nc

ha
lle

ng
ed

 

Do
cu

m
en

t C
en

tre
 - 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 w

or
k 

-3
3 

-4
0

-5
0

-6
0

-7
5

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 e

ar
ly 

ye
ar

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 s

av
in

gs
. 

Le
ss

 c
er

ta
in

ty
 in

 la
te

r y
ea

rs
 a

s 
ex

te
rn

al
 w

or
k 

st
ill 

m
od

es
t 

M
em

be
rs

 A
llo

wa
nc

es
 R

ev
ie

w
 

-6
4

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
. 

M
em

be
rs

 A
llo

wa
nc

es
 

-3
0 

-3
0

-3
0

-3
0

-3
0

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 –
 d

oe
s 

no
t t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t o

f a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fro
m

 
sm

al
le

r c
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 c

on
se

qu
en

tia
l c

ha
ng

es
. 

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
ns

-1
4 

-1
4

-1
4

-1
4

-1
4

Ac
hi

ev
ed

-A
ss

um
in

g 
no

 p
ay

m
en

t t
o 

an
y 

su
cc

es
so

r t
o 

Ea
st

 o
f 

En
gl

an
d 

Re
gi

on
al

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
Ce

nt
ra

l S
er

vic
es

 - 
Re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

-1
70

 
-2

20
-2

20
-2

70
-2

70
Ac

hi
ev

ed
Ex

tra
 C

ar
 P

ar
kin

g,
 H

un
tin

gd
on

 T
ow

n 
Ce

nt
re

 
20

 
-1

8
21

19
-6

2
-2

,1
66

2,
16

6
Va

lu
es

 a
nd

 p
ha

sin
g 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
re

vie
w 

de
pe

nd
en

t o
n 

fin
al

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

. 

CC
TV

 - 
Ca

m
er

a 
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 

  
 

-8
1

-8
1

-7
5 

-8
2

Aw
ai

tin
g 

de
cis

io
n 

on
 fu

tu
re

 o
f C

CT
V 

be
fo

re
 c

om
m

itt
in

g 
an

y 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

.
IC

T 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 S

er
ve

r 
Vi

rtu
al

isa
tio

n 
10

 
10

10
10

10
-2

7
58

-6
0

-6
0 

-6
0

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t P

rin
tin

g 
Eq

ui
p.

 
-9

2
70

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

M
ul

ti-
fu

nc
tio

na
l D

ev
ice

s 
-2

2
3

1 
2

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r B

in
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 
-1

14
-1

01
-1

18
-1

57
 

-2
04

56
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Ve
hi

cle
 fl

ee
t r

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

.  
19

7
-2

17
-4

42
64

 
-1

01
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Ho
us

in
g 

Ca
pi

ta
l G

ra
nt

 (n
on

-
ea

rm
ar

ke
d)

-6
4

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

22



S
A

V
IN

G
S

 
RE

VE
NU

E
NE

T C
AP

ITA
L

NO
TES

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

201
0 

201
1 

201
2 

201
3 

201
4 

201
5 

Sch
em

e
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
201

1 
201

2 
201

3 
201

4 
201

5 
201

6 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
Hu

nt
in

gd
on

 B
us

 S
ta

tio
n 

-8
90

19
0

15
0

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Cr

im
e 

an
d 

Di
so

rd
er

 - 
Li

gh
tin

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
-2

0
2

 
25

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Hu
nt

in
gd

on
 M

ar
in

a 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

-6
2

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Pl

ay
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t &
 S

af
et

y 
Su

rfa
ce

 
Re

ne
wa

l
-5

-4
8

-3
7

-3
3 

-4
8

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s 

G
ra

nt
s 

-6
9

-6
9

-6
9

-6
9 

-6
9

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Cr

im
e 

an
d 

Di
so

rd
er

 - 
Li

gh
tin

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
-2

5
-2

4
-2

5
-2

5 
-2

5
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Re
pa

irs
 A

ss
ist

an
ce

  
-9

0
-9

0
-9

0
-9

0 
-9

0
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

So
cia

l H
ou

sin
g 

G
ra

nt
 

-5
00

-5
00

-5
00

-5
00

 
-5

00
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt 
Pl

an
  

-8
3

-8
3

-8
3

-8
9

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sa

fe
 C

yc
le

 R
ou

te
s 

 
-1

94
-9

3
-9

3
-9

5 
-9

5
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

St
 N

eo
ts

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
St

ra
te

gy
 P

ha
se

 2
 

-9
0

-9
0

-8
0

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t /
Si

gn
s 

in
 

fo
ot

pa
th

s 
an

d 
ca

r p
ar

ks
 

-3
5

-3
0

-3
0

-3
0

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

Hu
nt

in
gd

on
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

St
ra

te
gy

 
-9

0
-9

0
-9

0
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

St
 Iv

es
 T

ra
ns

po
rt 

St
ra

te
gy

 
-8

0
-8

0
-8

0
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Ra
m

se
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
tra

te
gy

 
-8

0
-4

1
-4

5
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Bu
s 

Sh
el

te
rs

 - 
ex

tra
 p

ro
vis

io
n 

-4
1

-4
2

-4
2

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
St

 Iv
es

 T
ow

n 
Ce

nt
re

 2
 - 

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

-2
0

-4
25

-5
09

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Sm

al
l S

ca
le

  -
 D

ist
ric

t W
id

e 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

-7
9

-7
9

-8
0

-6
0

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

AJ
C 

Sm
al

l s
ca

le
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

-8
6

-8
6

-8
6

-8
6 

-9
0

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
Vi

lla
ge

 R
es

id
en

tia
l A

re
as

 
-5

7
-6

0
-6

0
-7

6
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 

Ne
w 

Pu
bl

ic 
Co

nv
en

ie
nc

es
  

-1
00

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 

tota
l 

-2,9
55 

-4,2
85 

-5,4
56 

-5,7
28 

-6,5
71 

-1,1
07 

-3,9
39 

-24
2

-2,2
26 

-1,5
98 

-83
6

23



A
N

N
E

X
 B

 
A

S
S

U
M

P
T

IO
N

S

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
fo

r 
A

p
r 

20
12

fo
r 

A
p

r 
20

13
fo

r 
A

p
r 

20
14

fo
r 

A
p

r 
20

15
fo

r 
A

p
r 

20
16

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 P
ay

 
2.

0%
 

2.
0%

 
2.

0%
 

2.
0%

 
2.

0%
 

P
ay

 a
w

ar
d 

1.
0%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
P

ric
es

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 

3.
7%

 
13

.2
%

 
6.

0%
 

13
.2

%
 

6.
0%

 
ga

s 
0.

0%
 

1.
8%

 
3.

4%
 

6.
5%

 
12

.7
%

 
fu

el
8.

5%
 

5.
0%

 
5.

0%
 

5.
0%

 
5.

0%
 

ca
r 

pa
rk

 c
ha

rg
es

 $
$ 

10
.0

%
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 fe
es

 
15

.0
%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
2.

5%
 

2.
5%

 
P

en
si

on
 r

at
e 

17
.8

%
 

17
.8

%
 

17
.8

%
 

17
.8

%
 

17
.8

%
 

$$
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 M

T
P

 
U

til
ity

 in
fla

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
t d

ra
ft 

bu
dg

et
 s

ta
ge

 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 R

A
T

E
S

 
20

11
/ 

20
12

/ 
20

13
/ 

20
14

/ 
20

15
/ 

20
16

/ 
20

12
 

20
13

 
20

14
 

20
15

 
20

16
 

20
17

 

  
T

em
po

ra
ry

 B
or

ro
w

in
g 

an
d 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
1.

00
%

1.
60

%
2.

60
%

3.
60

%
4.

50
%

 
4.

50
%

  
P

W
LB

 4
0 

ye
ar

 b
or

ro
w

in
g 

5.
50

%
5.

60
%

5.
70

%
5.

60
%

5.
40

%
 

5.
30

%

P
ro

vi
si

on
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
fo

r 
lu

m
p 

su
m

 p
en

si
on

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 c
ov

er
 th

e 
un

de
rf

un
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
as

 o
pp

os
ed

 to
 h

av
in

g 
hi

gh
er

em
pl

oy
er

s’
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 a
s 

ag
re

ed
 in

 la
st

 y
ea

r’s
 M

T
P

. T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

of
f-

se
tti

ng
 fa

ll 
in

 th
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
 

A
 fo

re
ca

st
 o

f £
15

0k
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

O
ne

 L
ei

su
re

’s
 o

ut
-p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

ir 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ta

rg
et

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 in

cl
ud

ed
. 

A
 s

av
in

g 
of

 a
ro

un
d 

£1
00

k 
pe

r 
ye

ar
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 fr
om

 a
 r

ec
en

t I
ns

ur
an

ce
 r

et
en

de
rin

g 
ex

er
ci

se
 a

nd
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
pl

an
. 

T
he

re
 is

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 s
lip

pa
ge

 o
n 

ce
rt

ai
n 

M
T

P
 s

ch
em

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

S
t. 

Iv
o 

Le
is

ur
e 

C
en

tr
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
ne

w
 M

ul
ti-

st
or

ey
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

in
 

H
un

tin
gd

on
 a

nd
 th

es
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 in
 d

et
ai

l a
t t

he
 d

ra
ft 

bu
dg

et
 s

ta
ge

. 

24



A
N

N
E

X
 C

 

F
O

R
E

C
A

S
T

 

FO
RE

CA
ST 

BU
DG

ET 
MT

P 
FO

RE
CA

ST 
201

1/1
2 

201
2/1

3 
201

3/1
4 

201
4/1

5 
201

5/1
6 

201
6/1

7 
201

7/1
8 

201
8/1

9 
201

9/2
0 

202
0/2

1 
202

1/2
2 

202
2/2

3 
202

3/2
4 

202
4/2

5 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
£00

0 
201

1/1
2  B

UD
GE

T/M
TP 

 
22,

615
 

21,
348

 
20,

998
 

21,
452

 
20,

949
 

21,
793

 
22,

027
 

22,
647

 
23,

284
 

23,
937

 
24,

610
 

25,
301

 
26,

010
 

26,
740

 
Var

iati
ons

: 
  

  
  

In
te

re
st

  
-5

3 
-1

14
 

-1
41

 
-1

68
 

-7
0 

-8
3 

-1
28

 
-1

70
 

-2
10

 
-2

47
 

-2
79

 
-3

08
 

-3
32

 
-3

53
 

Pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r L

oa
n 

Re
pa

ym
en

ts
 

(M
RP

) 
-6

4 
-6

9 
-7

9 
-9

3 
-1

06
 

-4
0 

-1
18

 
-2

07
 

-2
32

 
-3

19
 

-4
09

 
-4

92
 

-5
65

 
-6

57
 

In
fla

tio
n 

-6
60

 
-4

88
 

-1
,0

04
 

-1
,3

13
 

-1
,4

40
 

-1
,7

49
 

-1
,6

23
 

-1
,4

59
 

-1
,4

27
 

-1
,3

43
 

-1
,3

28
 

-1
,3

86
 

-1
,5

53
 

-1
,8

36
 

Un
id

en
tif

ie
d 

Sa
vin

gs
 

0 
75

1 
81

1 
1,

37
4 

1,
78

4 
2,

02
7 

2,
51

1 
2,

58
0 

2,
56

5 
2,

59
4 

2,
41

9 
2,

06
4 

1,
53

6 
88

4 

M
TP

 V
ar

ia
tio

ns
 

31
0 

74
6 

98
9 

1,
22

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 
1,

26
8 

1,
26

8 

tota
l 

-46
7 

826
 

576
 

1,0
29 

1,4
37 

1,4
23 

1,9
10 

2,0
12 

1,9
65 

1,9
54 

1,6
71 

1,1
46 

354
 

-69
4 

  
  

  

NE
W F

OR
EC

AS
T 

22,
148

 
22,

174
 

21,
574

 
22,

481
 

22,
386

 
23,

216
 

23,
937

 
24,

659
 

25,
249

 
25,

891
 

26,
281

 
26,

447
 

26,
364

 
26,

046
 

FU
ND

ING
 

  
  

  
Us

e 
of

 re
ve

nu
e 

re
se

rv
es

 
-3

,1
22

 
-3

,3
63

 
-1

,7
53

 
-2

,1
62

 
-7

72
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 re

ve
nu

e 
re

se
rv

es
 E

O
Y 

11
,0

50
 

7,
68

7 
5,

93
4 

3,
77

2 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 
3,

00
0 

3,
00

0 

Ne
w 

Ho
m

es
 G

ra
nt

 
-8

32
 

-1
,7

12
 

-2
,6

73
 

-3
,5

21
 

-4
,6

62
 

-5
,9

12
 

-6
,2

68
 

-6
,6

11
 

-6
,8

08
 

-7
,0

42
 

-6
,9

83
 

-6
,5

91
 

-5
,9

36
 

-5
,0

27
 

Sp
ec

ia
l C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
G

ra
nt

 
-18

4
-18

4
-18

4
-18

4
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

G
ra

nt
 (R

SG
) 

-1
0,

52
2 

-9
,2

88
 

-9
,0

86
 

-8
,4

76
 

-8
,5

48
 

-8
,6

24
 

-8
,7

06
 

-8
,7

92
 

-8
,8

83
 

-8
,9

81
 

-9
,1

09
 

-9
,3

36
 

-9
,5

69
 

-9
,8

09
 

Co
lle

ct
io

n 
Fu

nd
 D

ef
ici

t 
-1

05
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

Co
un

cil
 T

ax
 

-7
,3

83
 

-7
,6

27
 

-7
,8

78
 

-8
,1

37
 

-8
,4

04
 

-8
,6

79
 

-8
,9

63
 

-9
,2

56
 

-9
,5

57
 

-9
,8

68
 

-1
0,

18
9 

-1
0,

51
9 

-1
0,

86
0 

-1
1,

21
0 

CO
UN

CIL
 TA

X L
EV

EL 
£12

4.1
7 

£12
7.2

7 
£13

0.4
6 

£13
3.7

2 
£13

7.0
6 

£14
0.4

9 
£14

4.0
0 

£14
7.6

0 
£15

1.2
9 

£15
5.0

7 
£15

8.9
5 

£16
2.9

2 
£16

6.9
9 

£17
1.1

7
%

 in
cr

ea
se

 
0.0

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
2.5

0%
£ 

in
cr

ea
se

 
£0.

00
£3.

10
£3.

18
£3.

26
£3.

34
£3.

43
£3.

51
£3.

60
£3.

69
£3.

78
£3.

88
£3.

97
£4.

07
£4.

17

Fo
re

ca
st

 C
ap

ita
l S

pe
nd

in
g 

11
,9

33
 

3,
32

1 
3,

00
5 

2,
44

1 
2,

77
7 

3,
10

1 
3,

23
1 

3,
27

2 
3,

41
7 

3,
56

6 
3,

71
8 

3,
87

5 
4,

03
5 

4,
20

0 

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 n
et

  "
Bo

rro
wi

ng
" E

O
Y 

29
,1

68
 

31
,1

31
 

32
,5

36
 

33
,0

91
 

33
,7

21
 

34
,4

00
 

35
,0

77
 

35
,5

67
 

35
,9

28
 

36
,2

58
 

36
,5

75
 

36
,8

89
 

37
,2

44
 

37
,6

39
Ne

t I
nt

er
es

t a
nd

 B
or

ro
wi

ng
 C

os
ts

 
  

  
  

   
  -

 to
ta

l 
47

2 
1,

13
2 

1,
67

3 
2,

19
3 

2,
61

4 
2,

93
5 

3,
09

8 
3,

35
3 

3,
64

5 
3,

84
1 

4,
02

1 
4,

19
5 

4,
32

9 
4,

47
0 

   
  -

 a
s 

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 n

et
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

2%
 

5%
 

8%
 

10
%

 
12

%
 

13
%

 
13

%
 

14
%

 
14

%
 

15
%

 
15

%
 

16
%

 
16

%
 

17
%

 
Un

ide
ntif

ied
 Sp

end
ing

 
Ad

jus
tme

nts
 sti

ll re
qui

red
  

0
0

-15
0

-15
0

-19
1

-1 
-12

1
-63

5
-1,1

94
-1,4

77
-2,1

16
-3,0

57
-3,8

45
-4,8

92

IM
P

O
R

T
A

N
T

 –
 T

h
es

e 
sp

en
d

in
g

 a
d

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 b

ef
o

re
 a

llo
w

in
g

 f
o

r 
R

is
ks

 a
n

d
 U

n
kn

o
w

n
s 

– 
S

ee
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
1.

1 
&

 A
n

n
ex

 D
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 r
an

g
e.

25



ANNEX D 
REVISED UNIDENTIFIED SAVINGS RANGE 

Paragraph 9 and Annex C of the Report are based on those issues where it is 
reasonably straightforward to make an assessment of the financial impact of the 
items.

Section 11 highlights the many items where this is not possible and so the following 
two tables propose revised savings levels based on a low end and high end view of 
these difficult to assess items. 

LOW END ASSUMPTION 
Extra savings needed (+) ##:

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Initial level  (Section 9 and Annex C of the report) 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0
1% increase in pay award in 2012/13 @@ 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
2% extra reduction in Government Grant in 2013/14  0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
0.4% growth per year in  Business Rates from 
2014/15   -0.2 -0.4 -0.6

10% Reduction in  New Homes Bonus grant due to 
slower housing completions 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5

Reduction in  Government Grant  equivalent to 10% 
of New Homes Bonus increase from 2013/14  0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3

0.425% increase in net spending every year to cover 
cost of increased population. There is no provision 
for demographic growth in the forecast. 

0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5

Extra £1M for disabled facilities grants this year and 
£0.5M in future years 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4

0.5 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5
Savings Items 
Over achievement on Pay & allowances Review $$ -0.4 -0.5 -0.6 -0.7
Over achievement on Reorganisation $$ -0.2   
Minimalist CCTV - save 2/3rds  0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Community Grants reductions – save 2/3rds 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Minor savings items 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.0 -0.1 -0.2 -0.3 -0.4
Low end assumption 0.5 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1

$$ Subject to staff consultation 
@@ If RPI does not fall and there is thus a need for higher than the budgeted 2.5% pay awards this 
could logically be funded from higher than 2.5% Council Tax increases. 

26



HIGHER END ASSUMPTION 
Extra savings needed (+) ##:

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Initial level  (Section 9 and Annex C of the report) 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.0
1% increase in pay award every year @@ 0.2 0.5 0.7 1.0 1.3
3% loss in Leisure Centre fees and charges from 
12/13 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

4% extra reduction in Government Grant in 2013/14  0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
0.4% growth per year in  Business Rates from 
2014/15   -0.2 -0.4 -0.6

30% Reduction in  New Homes Bonus grant due to 
slower housing completions 0.3 0.6 0.8 1.2 1.5

Reduction in  Government Grant  equivalent to 15% 
of New Homes Bonus increase from 2013/14  0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4

0.85% increase in net spending every year to cover 
cost of increased population. There is no provision 
for demographic growth in the forecast. 

0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.1

Removal of turnover allowance due to lower turnover 
and employee numbers  0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

Residual cost of fraud team if not funded by 
Government  0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Potential reduction in tax base from non-collectable 
Council Tax following localisation reductions 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Extra £1M for disabled facilities grants this year and 
£0.5M in future years 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4

1.1 2.9 3.4 4.4 5.2
Savings Items
Over achievement on Pay & allowances Review $$ -0.3 -0.4 -0.5 -0.6
Over achievement on Reorganisation $$ -0.2   
Basic CCTV  save 1/3rd 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Transfer Countryside to a trust - save none 0.1 0.1 0.1
Rental of space in PFH -  save half 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Increase in car park charges -  save half 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3
Community Grants reductions - save 1/3rd 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Transfer Leisure Centres to a Trust – save none  0.4 0.4
Minor savings items 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.8
Higher end assumption 1.3 3.6 4.1 5.5 6.0

@@ Assumes RPI does not fall and thus a need for higher than the budgeted 2.5% pay awards. This 
should logically be funded from higher than 2.5% Council Tax increases. 

27



NOT INCLUDED IN EITHER ASSUMPTION 
Extra savings needed (+) ##:

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

1% increase in non-pay inflation rate if 
fees and charges adjusted 
appropriately each year&& 

   0.1 0.1

2% increase in Pension Fund 
contributions in 2013/14  0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

1% increase in all interest rates from 
2011/12 onwards 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1

&& Excludes income items where above inflation increases already assumed 

Reorganisation
Extra savings needed (+) ##:

12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 
£M £M £M £M £M 

Target Saving -0.4 -0.7 -0.7 -0.7 -0.7
Achieved -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3
PPP phases 1 and 2 $$ -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3 -0.3
Still required -0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
$$ Excludes any protection and redundancy costs 

28



ANNEX E 

ANNUAL MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY 2011/12 

When a Council finances capital expenditure from borrowing, the resulting costs are 
charged to the Council Taxpayers over the whole life of the asset so that those who 
benefit from the asset share the cost.  There are two elements to the cost – the 
interest on the borrowing is charged in the year it is payable, whilst the money to 
repay the sum borrowed is charged as a “minimum revenue provision” (MRP) to the 
revenue account each year, starting with the year after the borrowing takes place. 
Once money is in the MRP it can only be used for repaying borrowing. 

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has issued 
guidance on what constitutes prudent provision and this requires the Council to 
determine an approach and publish this each year.  

There are three options for the calculation of the MRP: 

Equal annual installments 
This is the easiest and simplest approach but the combination of the equal 
installments of principal and the reducing interest makes the cost high to start with 
but then reducing year by year. 

Depreciation basis
The Depreciation basis is the most complex. It starts by mirroring the equal annual 
installments method but also requires adjustments every time the life of an asset is 
varied.

Annuity basis 
By setting the rate for the annuity equal to the expected long term borrowing rate the 
cost is the same for each year like a conventional mortgage. It is only marginally 
more work than the equal installments approach. This was the basis agreed in 
previous years. 

The Annuity basis is, by far, the most equitable approach and it is 
therefore proposed that it continues to be the Council’s MRP policy. 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 22ND SEPTEMBER 2011 
 
 

FINANCIAL FORECAST 
(Report by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 At its meeting held on 8th September 2011, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Economic Well-Being) considered the report by the Head of Financial 
Services on the Financial Forecast. The following paragraphs contain a 
summary of the Panel’s discussions on the report. 
 

2. THE PANEL’S DISCUSSIONS 
 
2.1 The Panel has discussed the approach the Council might take to setting the 

Council Tax for 2012/13. Having recommended that analysis of the 
implications of not increasing Council Tax next year should be included in the 
options under consideration, it has been noted that it would require an 
increase of 30% for Huntingdonshire to reach the current average level of 
Council Tax for District Councils. It has also been pointed out that an increase 
of 5% would cover the lower end of the unidentified savings. Members are, 
therefore, of the view that all of the options for Council Tax merit serious 
consideration.  
 

2.2 With regard to the Council’s planned savings through pay and allowances, the 
Panel has been advised that changes to the salary scale, which are currently 
the subject of consultation with employees, will make savings significantly 
greater than those included in the budget. The changes are designed to 
reflect changes in the employment market, but Members have stressed the 
need to ensure they apply to all levels of employees to demonstrate equity 
and leadership in this matter. 
 

2.3 On a related matter, it has been suggested that the Council should take into 
account whether front-line or support services are involved when planning to 
make savings. The Council’s support services will be the subject of a study by 
the Panel, which will commence shortly. The view has further been expressed 
that the Council should examine the opportunities to make savings amongst 
those functions that do not appear in Annex A to the report by the Head of 
Financial Services. There will be a need for Overview and Scrutiny to monitor 
the effect of the savings on service levels to the public. 
 

2.4 Owing to the level of uncertainty associated with the Financial Strategy and 
changes in the Council’s circumstances since last year, a comment has been 
made that the Council should review its existing plans, adopt a flexible 
approach and be more rigorous in its identification and analysis of options for 
changes to the way services are delivered. 
 

2.5 Other comments made during the Panel’s deliberations include the 
expression of a view that as a non-statutory function the leisure service 
should make greater savings than those currently planned and that the 
Council should not assume it will get the full benefit of the New Homes Bonus 
as parishes will expect to have a say in how it is used. 

31



 
2.6 Having concluded their discussions, the Panel has recommended the Cabinet 

to: 
 
• approve the annuity basis for the calculation of Minimum Revenue 

Provision as outlined in Annex E to the report, and 
• note the contents of this report. 

 
3. CONCLUSION 

 
3.1 The Cabinet is invited to consider the discussions of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) as part of their deliberations on this 
item. 

 
 
 
Contact Officer: A Roberts, Scrutiny and Review Manager 
 � 01480 388015 
 
Background Documents 
 
Report and Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic 
Well-Being) held on 8th September 2011. 

32



 
   
 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
(ENVIRONMENTAL WELL BEING) 
CABINET 

13TH SEPTEMBER 2011 
 
22ND SEPTEMBER 2011 

 
 

CAMBRIDGESHIRE RESIDENTIAL TRAVEL PLAN GUIDANCE 
(Report by Head of Planning Services) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the draft Cambridgeshire 

Residential Travel Plan Guidance that has been developed by the 
County Council in discussion with the City and District Councils. 

 
1.2 The report also considers the schedule for taking the Guidance 

forward, including the Consultation Plan. 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 A Residential Travel Plan (RTP) is a package of measures which 

seeks to increase sustainable travel at a residential development. It 
does this by reducing the need for travel, reducing single-occupancy 
car travel and by providing and encouraging the use of more 
sustainable travel choices, such as walking, cycling, public transport, 
car sharing and car clubs. 

 
2.2 The concept of Travel Plans is one that has become more popular 

over recent years, particularly due to the environmental and 
economic benefit of reducing congestion, which in turn reduces the 
contribution of road transport to air pollution and climate change.  

 
2.3 National and regional guidance and policy has not in the past 

required Local Planning Authorities to request RTPs.  However, the 
draft National Planning Policy Framework (draft NPPF) which the 
Government is currently consulting on does make it clear (in 
paragraphs 89 and 90) that Travel Plans are a key tool in facilitating 
the use of sustainable travel modes which support reductions in 
greenhouse gas emissions and congestion. In particular, the draft 
NPPF states (in paragraph 90) that “All developments which generate 
significant amounts of movement, as determined by local criteria, 
should be required to provide a Travel Plan”. 

 
2.4 Local Planning Authorities in Cambridgeshire have worked together 

to develop the draft Cambridgeshire Residential Travel Plan 
Guidance (or “the draft Guidance”) as a means of ensuring that RTPs 
are provided as part of planning applications by developers. In effect 
this will enable City and District Councils to request RTPs from 

Agenda Item 5

33



developers for residential developments.  The Local Transport Plan 
(LTP3) also carries reference and support for RTPs, with them being 
mentioned alongside all other types of travel plans. 

 
2.5 This document is being taken forward by the County Council as 

Supplementary Guidance, which will have similar weight to a 
statutory Supplementary Planning Document in decision making if it 
has been subject to a) public consultation, b) Sustainability Appraisal, 
and c) been endorsed by County, City and District Council Members.  

 
2.6 The content of the draft Guidance has been agreed between the 

County, City and District Officers.  
 
2.7 The draft Guidance has been subject to Sustainability Appraisal to 

ensure that it contributes to sustainable development, by considering 
all social, economic and environmental factors.  The Sustainability 
Appraisal revealed that the draft Guidance is likely to have positive 
effects in all social, environmental and economic areas, except for 
one social area (crime and fear of crime), where the Guidance is 
likely to have no obvious effects. Both the draft Guidance and the 
Sustainability Appraisal are available as Background Papers to this 
report. 

 
3. PROPOSALS  
 
3.1 In accordance with national guidance, the schedule to develop the 

Guidance includes carrying out a 6-week period of public 
consultation. Prior to any such exercise being undertaken, the City 
and District Council’s are presenting this draft Guidance, including the 
Sustainability Appraisal and the Consultation Plan to Members, for 
them to note and to allow them to provide feedback.  

 
3.2 The draft Guidance and its supporting Sustainability Appraisal are 

large documents that can be found on the Member Services pages of 
Modern Gov at the following link; 

 http://projects.huntsdc.gov.uk/Members_Services/default.aspx 
 
3.3 The detailed Consultation Plan can be found at Appendix 1.  
  
3.4 Following this consideration and feedback, the draft Guidance will be 

revised to allow public consultation to be undertaken and following 
the completion of this exercise and its consideration thereof and 
revisions made, it will then be presented for adoption as 
Supplementary Guidance by all the Cambridgeshire Local Authorities.  

 
4. IMPLICATIONS  
 
4.1 There are no significant Resource or Performance implications 

associated with this work. 
 

34



4.2 In terms of Climate Change, the draft Guidance encourages 
developers to promote sustainable alternatives to the car as part of 
their developments, such as walking, cycling and public transport. In 
so doing, this draft Guidance will assist in reducing harmful emissions 
across the County, thereby assisting in reducing the impact of climate 
change and will assist in improving air quality. 

4.3 In terms of Access and Inclusion, the draft Guidance will help to 
enhance access to services by promoting a wider range of 
sustainable transport options, and encourage wider social benefits 
such as promoting active travel that can assist in improving both 
health and community well-being. 

 
5. CONCLUSIONS 
 
5.1 This work builds on national and local policy and guidance as outlined 

at Appendix 2 and follows good practice in having a definitive guide 
for Cambridgeshire and the benefits that will ensue for the County as 
a whole as outlined in the report. 

 
5.2 At the conclusion of the consultation, the results and emerging 

recommendations will be reported to Members, as well as those at 
County, City & other District level, at a later date. 

 
 
6. RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is RECOMMENDED; 
 

i) to note the draft Cambridgeshire Residential Travel Plan 
Guidance as a basis for public consultation 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
LTP 3. 
Cambridgeshire Residential Travel Plan Guidance - Sustainability Appraisal 
Scoping Report (May 2010). 
Cambridgeshire Residential Travel Plan Guidance - Habitats Regulations 
Assessment Screening Report (May 2010). 
 
 
 
Contact 
Officer: 

Paul Bland – Planning Services Manager (Policy) 

 � 01480 388430 
 
 

35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Consultation Plan 
 

Document Consultees Method of 
communi
cation 

Consultation 
outcome 

Consultations up to December 2010 
CCC Teams Email, 

meetings 
Agreed  

Planning Policy Forum Email, 
meetings 

Agreed  
Chief Planning Officers  Meetings  Agreed  

� Residential 
Travel Plan 
(RTP) 
Guidance 

CCC Members – 
Environment Services 
Spokes 

Meeting Noted   

Natural England  Email  Approved 
Wildlife Trusts Email  No comments 

� Habitats 
Regulations 
Assessment 
(HRA) 
Screening 
Report 

RSPB Email  No comments 

Natural England  Email  Approved  
Environment Agency Email  Approved  

� Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) 
Scoping Report English Heritage Email  No comments  

Consultation of County Members prior to District Member consultation 
and Public Consultation, January/February 2011 
� RTP Guidance 
� SA Scoping 

Report  
� Consultation 

Plan 

CCC Members - Growth and 
Environment Policy 
Development Group (PDG) 

Meeting   

� RTP Guidance 
� SA Scoping 

Report  
� Consultation 

Plan 

CCC Members - Cabinet  Meeting   

Informal Consultation with District Members, March to September 2011 
� RTP Guidance Cambridge City Council - Meeting   

36



Document Consultees Method of 
communi
cation 

Consultation 
outcome 

Development Plan Steering 
Group (DPSG) 
East Cambs District Council 
(DC) Members 

Meeting   
Fenland DC Members Meeting   
Hunts DC Members Meeting   

� SA Scoping 
Report  

� Consultation 
Plan 

South Cambs DC Members Meeting   
Public Consultation1 for 6 weeks – date to be agreed 
� RTP Guidance  
� SA Scoping 

Report  
Statutory and non-statutory 
consultees 

Email, 
post, 
County & 
District 
websites 
and main 
receptions
, press 
adverts  

 

County & District Consultation following Public Consultation – to be 
agreed 

Planning Policy Forum Email or 
meeting  

 
Chief Planning Officers Meeting   

� RTP Guidance  
� Consultation 

Statement 
Development Control 
Managers 

Meeting   
Endorsement of RTP Guidance – to be agreed 

CCC Members - Growth and 
Environment PDG 

Meeting   
CCC Members - Cabinet  Meeting   
Cambridge City Council 
Members 

Meeting   
East Cambs DC Members Meeting   
Fenland DC Members  Meeting   
Hunts DC Members Meeting   

� RTP Guidance  
� Consultation 

Statement 

South Cambs DC Members Meeting   
 

                                            
 

37



Appendix 2 
Further Supporting Information on the Guidance 

 
National Policy and Guidance 
 
Currently residential travel plans are not well-established in national planning policy.  
Planning Policy Guidance 13 (PPG 13) explicitly supports local authorities requesting 
travel plans from developers, but this policy only specifies travel plans for workplaces 
and for schools.  
 
The draft National Planning Policy Framework (July 2011) is expected to replace 
existing PPGs and PPSs by the Spring of 2012, and this specifically states that 
Travel Plans are a key tool in facilitating reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and 
congestion from all new developments which generate significant amounts of 
movement.. 

 
Department for Transport (DfT) later released the guidance Making Residential 
Travel Plans Work (2005) which seeks to establish the place of residential travel 
planning in the planning process.  
 
Residential travel planning is further supported by DfT’s Smarter Choices – Changing 
the Way We Travel (2004). This document stresses the importance of using ‘softer’ 
measures, such as travel planning, to persuade people to travel sustainably, 
alongside ‘hard’ measures such as providing transport infrastructure. The DfT has 
published proven results of the effectiveness of Smarter Choices in influencing travel 
behaviour.  
 
Local Policy and Guidance 
 
One of Cambridgeshire’s Local Transport Plan (LTP) objectives is “to develop 
integrated transport and to promote public transport, walking, cycling and other 
sustainable forms of transport.” More specifically, the LTP makes reference to 
Smarter Choices and dedicates a whole chapter to Smarter Travel Management.  
 
In addition, the County Council’s Climate Change and Environment Strategy (CCES) 
clearly identifies the importance of sustainable travel, as a way of reducing the 
county’s greenhouse emissions: 
 
Climate Change Policy 5 (CC5): “We will work to bring about a shift to more 
sustainable transport (smarter travel), including walking, cycling and public transport.” 
 
The CCES itself has been developed from national policy and indicators. Therefore 
this Guidance will contribute towards reducing climate change, by encouraging 
sustainable travelling at new residential developments in Cambridgeshire.  

 
Cambridgeshire County Council has been working collaboratively with local planning 
authorities to produce the Residential Travel Plan guidance.  Once complete, it will 
allow local planning authorities to use the guidance in preparing their Local Planning 
Documents.  Currently South Cambridgeshire District is the only authority which has 
an adopted policy, which explicitly requires the preparation of Residential Travel 
Plans. It is envisaged that local planning authorities will adopt this Guidance as 
Supplementary Guidance to enable them to have a stronger policy backing to 
request Residential Travel Plans from developers.  
 
The purpose of the Guidance is to provide a background on Residential Travel Plans, 

38



to explain the residential travel planning process, and to specify the local 
requirements for Residential Travel Plans.  
 
This Guidance is intended for use by developers, consultants, 
Cambridgeshire’s City and District Councils, and any other stakeholders 
involved in the residential travel planning process. 

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 22ND SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

CAMBRIDGESHIRE RESIDENTIAL TRAVEL PLAN GUIDANCE 
(Report by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Environmental Well-Being) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 At its meeting held on 13th September 2011, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel (Environmental Well-Being) considered the report by the Head of 
Planning Services on the Cambridgeshire Residential Travel Plan Guidance. 
The following paragraphs contain a summary of the Panel’s discussions on 
the report. 
 

2. THE PANEL’S DISCUSSIONS 
 
2.1 The Panel has reviewed the draft Residential Travel Plan (RTP) Guidance, 

which has been developed by the County Council in discussion with the City 
and District Councils. It has been noted that adoption of the Guidance is 
intended to make the County Council’s policy position more robust. 

 
2.2 Members have focussed on the threshold above which an RTP will be 

requested. It is proposed that Huntingdonshire will require an RTP for any 
development with 80 or more dwellings. This is in accordance with national 
Guidance on Transport Assessment (Department for Transport, 2007). 
However, other District Councils have indicated they will use a lower figure. 
Fenland District Council will use 25 dwellings or more and South 
Cambridgeshire District Council will use 20 dwellings or more, or, if this is not 
known, where the site area is 0.5 hectares or more. The Panel is of the view 
that the requirement to produce an RTP represents a significant burden for 
developers and that the figure proposed by Huntingdonshire is required for 
the policy to be viable. 

 
2.3 The Panel has suggested that social housing agencies should be included in 

the Consultation Plan in Appendix 1 to the report by the Head of Planning 
Services. Some Members of the Panel have also commented on the apparent 
inconsistency demonstrated by the County Council by introducing the 
requirement for developers to produce RTPs when it is reducing its support 
for public transport.  

 
2.4 At the conclusion of their discussions the Panel endorsed the Cambridgeshire 

Residential Travel Plan Guidance. 
 
3. CONCLUSION 

 
3.1 The Cabinet is invited to consider the discussions of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel (Environmental Well-Being) as part of their deliberations on 
this item. 

 
Contact Officer: A Roberts, Scrutiny and Review Manager 01480 388015 
  
Background Documents - Reports and Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Environmental Well-Being) held on 13th September 2011. 

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



  
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
(ECONOMIC WELL BEING) 
 

08 SEPTEMBER 2011 

CABINET 22 SEPTEMBER 2011 
 

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT BUDGET 
(Report by the Head of Housing Services) 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report informs Cabinet that the demand for disabled facilities 

grants (DFGs) will exceed the 2011/12 budget provision.  It explores 
the reasons for this and provides options for dealing with the 
situation. 

 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The Council must award a DFG for work to achieve one or more of a 

set of purposes defined by statute.  DFGs are awarded on the 
recommendation of an occupational therapist (OT) and funds aids 
and adaptations like ramps, stair lifts and level access showers.  
Occasionally the works required are more involved and may result in 
an extension to a property, if this is the best solution. DFGs enable 
elderly and disabled people to live independently and therefore 
contribute towards their quality of life.  The Council must be satisfied 
that a DFG is necessary and appropriate and that to carry it out is 
reasonable and practicable.   The Council is expected and required to 
set a budget that can cope with the likely level of demand placed 
upon it. 

 
2.2 A local authority must inform the applicant in writing of the outcome of 

an application as soon as reasonably practicable and not later than 
six months after the date of the application. 

 
2.3 When demand exceeds available budget authorities are able to defer 

payment of approved cases for up to 12 months but this cannot be 
used to limit demand or reduce expenditure.  When money becomes 
available these approved cases are first in line to be paid followed by 
all the other cases for that financial year.  This approach does not 
solve the problem it merely defers the problem. 

 
3. REASONS FOR INCREASED DEMAND/COST 
 
3.1 The waiting time for OT assessment for HDC residents compared to 

other districts has been longer.  Over the last 3 years the OT service 
has put extra resources into Huntingdonshire.  This has resulted in 
higher referral rates.  The waiting time has been broadly equitable 
with other districts since May 2011. It was anticipated that the volume 
of referrals would reduce once equity had been achieved but this has 
not been the case so far.  The OT service has reported a general 
increase in demand. 

 
Year Number of OT referrals Average per month 

2009-10 347 28.92 
2010-11 404 (+57) 33.67 
2011-12 134 (April to July)                   33.5 

 

Agenda Item 6

43



3.2 There were 135 enquiries outstanding from last year at the end of 
December 2010.  These jobs, because of the lead time to prepare, 
have carried over for funding in the current year. In addition, the 
referrals in the current year from the OT service have, so far, 
continued at the higher rate of the previous year.  

 
3.3 Grants Approved. 
 

Year  Grant Approvals Average number per 
month 

2009-10 188 15.66 
2010-11 320 (+132)            26.66 (+11) 
2011-12   98 (April to 30 August)                   19.6 

 
 

APPROVED GRANTS 
 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

(to 30 August) 
Number    
Adult 167 300   93 
Child   21   20   13 
Total 188 320  106 
    
Total cost £ £ £ 
Adult    790,293 1,507,862 502,321 
Child    231,424    298,982 223,238 
Total 1,021,717 1,806,844 725,559 
Average 
cost 

£ £ £ 
Adult   4,732   5,026   5,401 
Child 11,020 14,949 17,172 
All   5,435   5,646   6,845 

 *Grants approved in the year will not equal spend in year due to 
works/payments overlapping financial years. 

 
3.4 There has been a general increase in the number of referrals 

including higher value works such as conversions and extensions to 
homes (see tables at 3.3 and 3.10).  Some of the approvals last 
year are a cost to this year’s budget. 

 
3.5 The Child OT service has reported that their considerable backlog of 

complex cases has now been addressed due to increased staffing 
resources.  They are now visiting children’s cases within their 18 
week target. 

 
3.6 They have commented that the nature of children’s disability has 

changed over the years, and continues to change.  The advances in 
medical care mean that children are surviving now who would 
have previously died, a portion of these children are surviving with 
very profound and complex disability.   

 
3.7 The OT service has said that it is difficult to predict workflows 

because whilst there is no longer a long waiting list of children 
who have waited up to two years there is an increasing number 
of severely disabled children surviving in to childhood and with a 
more complex pattern of disability.  

 
44



 
 
3.8 An additional influence on increased costs has been the introduction 

of new building regulation since last October which has increased 
the thermal insulation requirements of extensions and conversions.  
Builders have stated that over the last year there has been a 
significant increase in material costs and plumbing materials eg 
copper pipes and fittings etc have doubled in price. 

 
3.9 The following two tables are a breakdown of the table 

of ‘Approved Grants’ at paragraph 3.3. 
  

APPROVED WORKS (Grants) 
EXTENSIONS/CONVERSIONS 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 
(to 30 August) 

Number    
Adult 3   9    5 
Child 5 10    7 
Total 8 19  12 
    
Total cost    
Adult   71,924 196,654 129,866 
Child 105,565 235,715 168,338 
All 177,489 432,369  298,204 
Average 
cost 

   
Adult 23,975 21,850 25,973 
Child 21,113 23,571 24,048 
All 22,186 22,756 24,850 

 
3.10 It is difficult to predict the average cost of child cases because they 

are tailored to the individual’s sometimes complex needs in 
comparison to adult adaptations that in general relate more to 
standard jobs such as access to bathing facilities. 

 
APPROVED OTHER WORKS (Grants) 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 
(to 30 August) 

Number    
Adult 164 291 88 
Child   16   10   6 
Total 180 301 94 
    
Total cost    
Adult 718,369 1,311,208 372,455 
Child 125,859      63,267   54,900 
All 844,228 1,374,475 427,355 
Average 
cost 

   
Adult 4,380 4,506   4,232 
Child 7,866 6,327   9,150 
All 4,690 4,566   4,546 

 
 
 

45



 
 
 
3.11 There is insufficient budget 2011/12 to progress the following cases.  

Not all of these works are capable of completion during 2011/12. 
  

APPLICATIONS ALREADY RECEIVED   
(AWAITING APPROVAL) 

 Extensions/conversions Other Total 
Number    
Adult 12 75   87 
Child   7 13   20 
Total 19 88 107 
 £ £ £ 
Total cost    
Adult 300,000 537,950    837,950 
Child 170,000   87,500    257,500 
All 470,000 625,450 1,095,450 
Average 
cost 

   
Adult 25,000 7,173   9,632 
Child 24,286 6,731 12,875 
All 24,737 7,107 10,237 

 
 
4. FUNDING REQUIREMENT 2011/12 
 
4.1 The funding requirement of demand capable of being 

completed/commenced and requiring payment during 2011/12 is as 
follows: 

 
 Number of 

cases 
2011/12 

Funding Requirement 
£000 

Budget           1,217 
Spend at 24 August  528  
Approved and committed  619  
Sub total  1,147 1,147 
Remaining budget   70 
Applications capable of 
completion (already in the 
system but not approved*) 

 626  

New applications expected 
Sept - December**  (at 20 
approvals per month) 

80 560  

Sub total  1,186 1,186 
Budget shortfall   1,116 

 *Approximate cost - builders quotes not received.  
**applications take approximately 3 months to process so those received 
between January and March will be funded from the following year’s budget. 
The mix between large and small jobs is unknown. It is assumed that there 
will be considerably less extensions/conversions for child cases.  The 
average number of grant approvals has been assumed to be 20 per month.  
An average grant of £7k has been used for estimation purposes.   
 

 
 
 

46



5. OPTIONS 
 
5.1 The table below shows the increase in capital investment and 

revenue impact for different service levels that could be provided 
(delays in applicants receiving adaptations to their homes). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
5.2 If the additional budget required is to be delayed by six months this 

could be included as part of an MTP process for additional resources 
for 2012/13. 

 
6. CONCLUSIONS 
 
6.1 The combination of increased demand/referrals for DFGs and the 

increased cost of DFGs means that 2011/12 budget is insufficient if 
the Council wishes to continue its current approach of dealing with 
DFGs without delay, recognising that any delay in providing DFGs 
would have a detrimental impact on the quality of life of those 
requiring adaptations to their home. 

 
6.2 To maintain the current level of service, an increase of £1.116m 

would be required to the 2011/12 budget.  These Grants are funded 
over 10 years and so the additional revenue cost will be £104k in 
2012/13 but rising to around £134k for the remaining nine years.  This 
would enable the Council to fund the backlog of DFG applications in 
addition to those that will be received during the year until December.  

 
6.3 Investigations are ongoing to establish the likely demand going 

forward.  It is likely that an increased budget provision will be required 
in future years and this will form part of the MTP review in the 
autumn. 

 
6.4 Any delay in approvals is likely to result in complaints and adverse 

media. 
 
6.5 The approval of a supplementary estimate will be a key decision. 
 
7. RECOMMENDATION 
 
7.1 It is recommended that Cabinet determine the service standard to be 

provided, by reference to the table at paragraph 5.1, and approve the 
applicable supplementary capital estimate. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Nil 
 
Contact Officer:  Steve Plant, Head of Housing Services 
  01480 388240 

Extra Cost  
Delay in Completion 

of Adaptation 
 

Months 

Capital 
 

£000 
 

2012/13 
 Revenue Impact 

£000 
0 1,116 104 
3  78 
6  52 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 22ND SEPTEMBER 2011 
 
 

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT BUDGET 
(Report by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 At its meeting held on 8th September 2011, the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Economic Well-Being) considered the report by the Head of Housing 
Services on the Disabled Facilities Grant Budget. The following paragraphs 
contain a summary of the Panel’s discussions on the report. 
 

2. THE PANEL’S DISCUSSIONS 
 
2.1 The Panel has noted that there has been an increase in demand for Disabled 

Facilities Grants (DFGs) in 2011/12 and consequently there are insufficient 
funds to progress a number of cases in the current year. It is estimated that to 
maintain the current level of service, an increase of £1.116m would be 
required to the 2011/12 budget. The Panel has noted that there are a number 
of different service levels that can be provided to those who required 
adaptations to their homes, which would result in differing delays to 
completion times. Members have also advised there is an option for 
authorities to defer payment of approved cases for up to 12 months but this 
cannot be used to limit demand or reduce expenditure. It merely defers the 
problem to the following year.  

 
2.2 In considering the options which are available, Members have been reminded 

that Cabinet has previously agreed that applications for DFGs should be dealt 
with as expeditiously as possible. Having recognised that any delay in 
providing DFGs could have a detrimental impact on the quality of life of those 
who require adaptations, Members are of the opinion that the Council should 
continue with its current policy and the Cabinet is invited to approve a 
supplementary capital estimate with no delays in applicants receiving 
adaptations to their homes. 

 
3. CONCLUSION 

 
3.1 The Cabinet is invited to consider the discussions of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) as part of their deliberations on this 
item. 

 
 
 
Contact Officer: A Roberts, Scrutiny and Review Manager 
 � 01480 388015 
 
Background Documents 
 
Report and Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic 
Well-Being) held on 8th September 2011. 

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



64

This page is intentionally left blank



65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



66

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Financial Forecast
	Report to Cabinet - Sept 2011 Financial Forecast

	5 Cambridgeshire Travel Plan Guidance
	Report to Cabinet - Sept 2011 RTP

	6 Disabled Facilities Grant budget
	Report to Cabinet - Sept 2011 DFG

	8 Call Centre options beyond 2012
	Report to Cabinet - Sept 2011 Call Centre Options


